
POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Page 1 of 2 

 

 

POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
DATE:  September 20, 2023 
TIME:  9:00 a.m. 
PLACE: Polk County Courthouse, Dallas, Oregon 
 

THE LOCATION OF THIS MEETING IS ADA ACCESSIBLE. PLEASE ADVISE THE BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS AT (503-623-8173), AT LEAST 24 HOURS IN ADVANCE, OF ANY SPECIAL 

ACCOMMODATIONS NEEDED TO ATTEND OR TO PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING VIRTUALLY. 

 
PAGE:         AGENDA ITEMS 
 
  1. CALL TO ORDER AND NOTE OF ATTENDANCE 

  
2. ANNOUNCEMENTS  

 
(a) Regular meetings of the Board of Commissioners are held on Tuesday and Wednesday each week. 

Each meeting is held in the Courthouse Conference Room, 850 Main Street, Dallas, Oregon. Each 
meeting begins at 9:00 a.m. and is conducted according to a prepared agenda that lists the principal 
subjects anticipated to be considered. Pursuant to ORS 192.640, the Board may consider and take 
action on subjects that are not listed on the agenda.  The Board also holds a department staff meeting 
at 9:00am on every Monday in the Commissioners Conference Room at 850 Main Street, Dallas, 
Oregon. 
 

(b) The Grand Ronde Sanitary District Board is meeting on September 20, 2023 at 9:15 a.m. The 
meeting will take place in the Polk County Courthouse, 850 Main Street, Dallas, OR, 97338. 
 
 
 

 
 

  3. COMMENTS (for items not on this agenda and limited to 3 minutes) 

  4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

  5. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES FROM September 13, 2023 

  6. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR 

  7. HONORING JUDGE LUUKINEN 

  8. RESOLUTION 23-13 – Lyle Mordhorst 

  9. RECLASSIFICATION OF AN EMPLOYEE – Matt Hawkins 

 
 
 

 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
        

(a) Polk County Contract No. 23-186, Central School District 
(Dana Goodale, Family & Community Outreach) 
 

   (b)   Polk County Contract No. 23-188, Salem Health West Valley 
    (Rosana Warren, Public Health) 
 

 

 

                              THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS WILL MEET IN EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 PURSUANT TO ORS 192.660. 
 
  ADJOURNMENT 

    
    
 
 
 
 
 



 

POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
MINUTES September 13, 2023  
 
1. CALL TO ORDER & ATTENDANCE 

At 9:00 a.m., Commissioner Gordon declared the meeting of the Polk County Board of Commissioners 
to be in session. Commissioner Mordhorst and Commissioner Pope were present. 
 
Staff present:  
  Morgan Smith, County Counsel 
  Matt Hawkins, Administrative Services Director 
          
2. ANNOUNCEMENTS 

Regular meetings of the Board of Commissioners are held on Tuesday and Wednesday each week. 
Each meeting is held in the Courthouse Conference Room, 850 Main Street, Dallas, Oregon. Each 
meeting begins at 9:00 a.m. and is conducted according to a prepared agenda that lists the principle 
subjects anticipated to be considered. Pursuant to ORS 192.640, The Board may consider and take 
action on subjects that are not listed on the agenda. The Board also holds a department staff meeting 
at 9:00 a.m. on every Monday in the Commissioners Conference Room at 850 Main Street, Dallas, 
Oregon.  
 
The Homeless Prevention Advisory Council will be meeting on September 13, 2023 from 12:00 pm 
to 1:30 pm located in the first floor conference room at 182 SW Academy St, Dallas Oregon, 97338. 
 
The Grand Ronde Sanitary District Board is meeting on September 20, 2023 at 9:15 a.m. The meeting 
will take place in the Polk County Courthouse, 850 Main Street, Dallas, OR, 97338. 
 

 
3. COMMENTS 

Pat Wildman provided public comment in regards to the Public Land Use Hearing that was held 
on 9/6/23 for LA 23-02, and that record was left open until 9/20/23 at 5:00 pm. Mrs. Wildman 
wanted to address dog kennels in the EFU zone. Mrs. Wildman is asking that the 
Commissioners grandfather in those who have had dog kennels in those zones prior to these 
potential changes. Commissioner Pope asked if she has talked to the Community Development 
Department. Mrs. Wildman stated that yes, she has. Commissioner Mordhorst asked if she had 
to get any licensing or permits with the county 20 years ago when she moved here, and she 
stated that at that time she was told there was nothing that she needed to do in order to operate 
a dog kennel on her farm and that is why she is asking to be grandfathered in. 

 

 
4.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

MOTION:  COMMISSIONER MORDHORST MOVED, COMMISSIONER POPE SECONDED, 
TO APPROVE THE AGENDA. 

 
    MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THE BOARD.  
 
 
 
5.   APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF BOARD MEETING OF August 30, 2023 & September 

6, 2023 
 

MOTION:  COMMISSIONER POPE MOVED, COMMISSIONER MORDHORST SECONDED, 
TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF August 30, 2023 & September 6, 2023. 

      
    MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THE BOARD. 
 
 
 
 
 



September 13, 2023 
Page 2 

 

  

6. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

MOTION:  COMMISSIONER MORDHORST MOVED, COMMISSIONER POPE SECONDED, 
TO APPROVE THE CONSENT CALENDAR. 

      
    MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THE BOARD. 
 
 
7. LENGTH OF SERVICE AWARDS 
 The Board of Commissioners and staff recognized and thanked the following employees for 

their length of service: 

• Doug Akin, 15 years of service 

• Brent DeMoe, 15 years of service 

• John Nyberg, 10 years of service 

 
  
The following items were approved by Motion under 5. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR: 
 

 
 
 
There no need for an executive session and Commissioner Gordon adjourned the meeting 
at 9:08 a.m. 
 

 
POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
       

        

 Jeremy Gordon, Chair   
 
 

                                                       
    Craig Pope, Commissioner 

        
                 
         
         Lyle Mordhorst, Commissioner 
 
 
 
Minutes: Nicole Pineda  
Approved: September 20, 2023 

(a) Polk County Contract No. 23-182, Oregon Health Authority 
(Rosana Warren, Behavioral Health) 
 

   (b)   Right of Way Dedication Acceptance, Young 
    (Todd Whitaker, Public Works Director) 
 
   (c)   Right of Way Dedication Acceptance, Lowery 
    (Todd Whitaker, Public Works Director) 
 

(a)   Right of Way Dedication Acceptance, Morrison 
 (Todd Whitaker, Public Works Director) 
 

(b)   Right of Way Dedication Acceptance, Fulmer 
  (Todd Whitaker, Public Works Director)  

 
(c)   Polk County Contract No. 23-183, Oregon Family Support Network 

 (Rosana Warren, Behavioral Health) 



BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FOR 
POLK COUNTY, OREGON 

IN THE MATTER OF PROCLAIMING POLK  ) 
COUNTY’S CALL FOR THE REPEAL  ) 
OF THE DECRIMINILIZATION ) 
PROVISIONS ENACTED PURSUANT TO     ) 
OREGON BALLOT MEASURE 110 (2020)     ) 

RESOLUTION NO.  23-13

WHEREAS, Oregon Ballot Measure 110, the Drug Addiction Treatment and Recovery Act, was 
passed in 2020 with the promise of reducing crime, improving public safety, saving lives; and 
increasing access to treatment; 

WHEREAS, the evidence shows that provisions in Measure 110  have not achieved their stated 
goals leading to an increase in overdose deaths and criminal activity in large cities, public 
nuisance, and a diminished quality of life for the citizens of Polk County Oregon; and 

WHEREAS, since Measure 110 was passed, while overdose deaths have increased in areas 
across the United States, there has been a dramatic increase in overdose deaths in Oregon. In 
2020, there were 585 overdose deaths. In 2021, that number increased to 917.  As of March 8, 
2023, there have been 1,161 overdose deaths confirmed in Oregon for 2022, more than doubling 
the number experienced just two years prior; and 

WHEREAS, Measure 110's enforcement provisions have proved ineffective. As of June 30, 
2023, of the 5,299 tickets filed in Oregon Circuit Courts since Measure 110 went into effect, more 
than 60% resulted in a recipient failing to pay and facing no further penalties. According to the 
Oregon Judicial Department on line reporting, regarding Class E violations, most of the rest of 
the tickets were dismissed or are pending. The State audit found that, during its first 15 months 
in operation, the treatment-referral hotline received just 119 calls at a cost to the taxpayer of 
$7,000 per call; and 

WHEREAS, Measure 110 has reduced the deterrent effect of drug laws, making it more likely 
that some people would use drugs. Before Measure 110, the threat of arrest and prosecution 
served as a deterrent to some people from using hard drugs. Measure 110 has removed this 
deterrent, making it more likely that some people would use these drugs; and 

Resolution 23-13 



WHEREAS, increased hard drug and alcohol use can lead to a number of public health issues, 
including communicable diseases and mental health problems. These irrefutable issues place a 
strain on our healthcare system and make it more difficult to provide care for people who need 
it; and 

WHEREAS, Measure 110 has also made it more likely that people will commit property crimes. 
A study by the National Institute on Drug Abuse found that drug users are more likely to commit 
property crimes than non-drug users. The study found that drug users are 2.5 times more likely 
to commit burglary, 2 times more likely to commit larceny, and 1.5 times more likely to commit 
motor vehicle theft; and 

WHEREAS, drug users are also more likely to be involved in drug trafficking. A study by the 
United Nations Office on Drugs and Crime found that drug users are 2.5 times more likely to be 
involved in drug trafficking than non-drug users; and 

WHEREAS, Measure 110 has reduced law enforcement’s ability to effectively enforce drug 
manufacturing and delivery statutes; and 

WHEREAS, the costs associated with drug use are significant. A study by the RAND Corporation 
found that drug use costs the United States $1,000,000,000,000 (trillion) per year in crime, 
healthcare, and lost productivity. The National Institute on Drug Abuse estimates that drug use 
contributes to 1 in 5 violent crimes and 1 in 7 property crimes. The Centers for Disease Control 
and Prevention estimates that drug use costs the United States $74,000,000,000 (billion) per 
year in healthcare costs; and 

WHEREAS, members of law enforcement and the criminal justice system have reported that 
Measure 110 has made it more difficult to motivate drug users to enter treatment. The threat of 
arrest and prosecution can be a motivating factor for people to enter treatment. Measure 110 
has removed this motivating factor, making it more likely that people would continue to use drugs 
and not seek treatment. This is especially true for people who are struggling with addiction and 
who may need the structure and support of a treatment court or inpatient treatment program; and 

WHEREAS, Measure 110 has reduced the quality of life for Polk County residents. Hard drug 
use is often associated with public nuisance behavior, such as loitering, littering, aggressive 
panhandling, and increased criminal activity. This has led to a diminished ability to safely use 
parks and other public spaces inhabited by drug users and limits local governments’ ability to 
maintain quality public spaces; and 

WHEREAS, Measure 110 provides recurring cannabis tax revenue to sustain expansion of 
treatment services in Polk County; and  

WHEREAS, we, the Polk County Board of Commissioners, Polk County Sheriff and Polk County 
District Attorney believe the derogatory effects and long-term threats to the health, safety, and 
welfare to the Citizens of Polk County by Measure 110 should be acknowledged and that 
Measure 110 should be repealed. 

Resolution 23-13 



Now, therefore, be it resolved by the undersigned that: 

1. The DECRIMINALIZATION provisions enacted pursuant to Oregon Ballot Measure 110
need to be repealed to protect the public health, safety, and welfare.

2. The Oregon Legislature must immediately encourage a revised ballot measure for voters
to consider .

3. The Oregon legislature must take informed and deliberate action to enable recurring
funding solutions that allow the treatment needs for those that are eligible through the justice
system as well as the behavioral health systems to avoid incarceration and purposefully bring
these people in need to a means of self-sufficiency and safe living.

Dated:  September 20, 2023 at Dallas, Oregon. 

POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

___________________________________ 
Jeremy Gordon, Chair 

___________________________________ 
Craig Pope, Commissioner 

___________________________________ 
Lyle Mordhorst, Commissioner 

___________________________________ 
Mark Garton, Polk County Sheriff 

___________________________________ 
Aaron Felton, Polk County District Attorney 

Approved as to Form: 

______________ 
Morgan Smith 
County Counsel 

Resolution 23-13  



HUMAN RESOURCES
POLK COUNTY

TO

POLK COUNTY COURTHOUSE * DALLAS, OREGON 97338-311 4

(503) 623-1888 
'tFAx 

(503) 623-1889

MEMORANDUM

Board of Commissioners

Matt Hawkins, Admin. Services Director

September 14,2023

Reclassification of a Civil Engineer I

Wednesday - September2012023 (5 minutes)

FROM:

DATE:

SUBJECT

RECOMMENDATION:
The Board of Commissioners approve the reclassification of a Civil Engineer I.

ISSUE:
Shall the Board approve the reclassifications?

DISCUSSION:
ft ir re*--ended that Stephen Kahl be reclassified from a Civil Engineer I to a Civil Engineer II and

receive an additional step. Stephen should have received this reclassification in June of 2023, but it
was missed by the department and we are now trying to address this mistake. Stephen made it to the

five year mark as a Civil Engineer I in June, and generally the reclassification is expected to happen at

that five year anniversary.

In addition to the reclassification we are asking that Stephen receive an additional step increase for

taking on extra duties. While Stephen is doing the work of a Civil Engineer II he has also taking on

duties that usually are handled by the Road Master.

Stephen is currently at step 6 of the Civil Engineer I position which is $7,321. If the reclassification and

extra step are approved he will move to step 5 of the Civil Engineer II position which is $7,931.

Should the reclassification be approved it would be retroactive to June 1,2023.

FISCAL IMPACT
This reclassification will have an impact on the budget for FY 23-24 of approximately $9,500

including PERS contribution should it be for 12 months



Contract  Review Sheet

Staff Contact:  

Title:  

Department:

Consent Calendar Date:  

Contractor Name:  

Address:  

Background/Discussion: 

    Thru: 
City, State, Zip: 
Effective Dates - From: 
Contract Amount: $ 

Fiscal Impact:  

Recommendation:  

Copies of signed contract should be sent to the following:   

Name:  

Name:  

Name:

E-mail:  

E-mail:  

E-mail:

Source Selection: 
Sole Source 

Competitive Quotes 

Formal Bid

Request for Proposals

Personal Services

Special/Exempt Procurement (explain below): 

_______________________________________________

_______________________________________________



INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT
POLK COUNTY AND CENTRAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 13J

FOR SCHOOL BASED MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into and shall be effective on August 1, 2023, by and
between Polk County ("Polk County") and Central School District 13J ("District").

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Polk County and District are units of local government, as that term is
defined in ORS 190.003; and

WHEREAS, ORS 190,010 provides that units of local government may enter into written
agreements for the performance of any or all functions and activities that a party
to the agreement, its officers or agencies, have authority to perform;

WHEREAS, Polk County and District recognize a critical need to provide mental health
support services for students to enrich the lives of school-age children of the
County; and

WHEREAS, Polk County and District wish to enter into an agreement which provides for
staff and families who will assist both District and Polk County in serving the
school age children of Polk County; and

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and covenants herein contained,
the parties enter into the following:

AGREEMENT

1. Purpose of and Effective Date of Contract.

a. The purpose of this Contract is to provide School Based Mental Health
services to students and families of the Central School District through the
ongoing employment of 6 FTE Mental Health Staff. 5 stationed full time in
schools and 1 floating Resource Connector based at The Annex.

b. This Contract becomes effective upon execution by both parties. The
contract effective dates are July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024. Any
renewals and/or changes to this agreement must be in writing, in the form
of an amendment to this Contract and signed by both parties.

2. Duties and Responsibilities
See “Appendix A”

Page | 1

Polk County Contract No. 23-186



3. Polk County Supervision. Polk County is the employer of these employees and is
responsible for supervisory oversight of these employees., Polk County will
handle all human resources functions including hours and benefits, grievances,
employment disputes and all wages, hours and benefits. Polk County will also
provide a designated supervisor for the School Based Mental Health Program
who will provide supervision for employees, consultation and resource
information to the district administration, Crisis Response Team (Flight Team)
leadership, Level 2 Threat Assessment support, assistance in accessing services
through Polk County Behavioral Health, and serve as a liaison for coordination of
school based mental health services and Central School District.

4. Criminal Background Check. Polk County will ensure District a criminal
background check is completed and passed by all employees and interns.

5. Workers' Compensation Insurance. Polk County and District agree that this
employee shall be an employee of Polk County for purposes of workers'
compensation insurance. Polk County agrees to administer all workers'
compensation claims and to defend and hold harmless District for workers'
compensation claims incurred while employee is injured at either employment
site.

6. Health Care Benefits for Employees (ORS 279.31 5). Polk County shall offer
health care benefits to all employees who are performing services previously
performed by public employees if the conditions specified in ORS 653.767
require such payment. Benefits must equal or exceed those benefits specified in
ORS 279.315 (3). This clause does not apply to contracts for temporary,
non-ongoing or nonrecurring contracts.

7. Americans with Disabilities Act Compliance. Polk County will comply and does
comply with all relevant provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, to the
extent required by the Act.

8. Term of the Agreement. The parties agree that this agreement shall be in effect
for one year. It is understood that this contract will be re-negotiated for renewal
for the 2023-24 fiscal year. It is further agreed that any renewal will be for a
period of not less than 12 months. Rates to be negotiated shall not be less than
the current rate of salary for the County of School Based Mental Health Staff, as
well as taxes and fringe benefits of the average cost by Polk County at the time
of renewal. There will be an additional agreed upon rate for management and
administration.

9. FERPA COMPLIANCE. District and Polk County agree that County employees
providing school based health services for the District pursuant to this agreement
shall be considered school officials for the purposes of the protections for student
records mandated by the Family Education Rights and Privacy Act (20 USC
1231(g)) (collectively referred to as FERPA, which records are specifically

Page | 2



exempted from the Privacy regulations of the Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Act and the federal regulations implementing the Act (collectively
referred to as HIPAA).The County will ensure that its employees maintain the
confidentiality of student information under the Family Educational Rights and
Privacy Act (“FERPA”). County staff that obtain or learn confidential information
while providing services under this Agreement shall not disclose such information
to third parties unless parent/guardian written consent has been obtained. 
FERPA prohibits the re-disclosure of confidential student information. Except in
very specific circumstances, the County shall not disclose to any other party
without prior consent of the parent/guardian any information or records regarding
students or their families that the County may learn or obtain in the course and
scope of its performance of this Contract. Any re-disclosure of confidential
student information must be in compliance with the re-disclosure laws of FERPA.
The County is not to re-disclose information without prior written notification to
and written permission of the District.

10. Indemnification.

a. Polk County and District are each independent governmental agencies.
District agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to defend, indemnify
and hold harmless the County, its officers, directors and employees
(collectively, County) against all damages, liabilities or costs, including
reasonable attorneys’ fees and defense costs, to the extent caused by
District’s performance of services under this Agreement and that of its
employees or anyone for whom District is legally liable. The County
agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to defend, indemnify and
hold harmless District, its officers, directors, employees and volunteers
(collectively, District) against all damages, liabilities or costs, including
reasonable attorneys’ fees and defense costs, to the extent caused by the
County’s acts in connection with this agreement and the acts of its officers,
agents, employee, volunteers or anyone for whom the County is legally
liable. Neither the County nor District shall be obligated to indemnify the
other party in any manner whatsoever for the other party’s negligence.

b. Both Polk County and District shall obtain and at all times keep in effect
comprehensive liability insurance and property damage insurance
covering each respective party's own acts and omissions under this
agreement. Such liability insurance, whatever the form, shall be in an
amount not less than the limits of public body tort liability specified in ORS
30.270. Either party may satisfy this requirement by self-insurance.

c. Polk County and District agree that District's liability insurance will be
primary for any claims arising out of acts or omissions of the school staff.

11. Assignment. Neither party to this agreement may assign its interest in the

Page | 3



agreement without the express written consent of the other party.

12.Compliance with Laws. During the entire term of this agreement, the parties
shall comply in every respect with all laws, rules and regulations of the State of
Oregon as well as agency policies affecting their rights and responsibilities under
the contract.

13.Waiver. No waiver of any portion of this agreement shall be deemed or shall
constitute a waiver of any other portion thereof, nor shall any waiver constitute a
continuing waiver.

14.Contract Disputes. The parties agree that any disagreement regarding the
interpretation, meaning or affect or any provision of this agreement shall be
settled by arbitration if so requested by either party in writing. The arbitration
decision will be binding upon the parties. The cost of such arbitration shall be
shared equally between the parties.

15.Termination or Suspension of Performance. This Intergovernmental Agreement
may be terminated under the following conditions:

a. By mutual consent of both parties, or by either party on 30 days' notice, in
writing and delivered by certified mail or in person;

b. Any such termination of this contract shall be without prejudice to any
obligations or liabilities of either party already accrued prior to the notice of
termination;

c. The parties agree to promptly settle all accounts existing from work
performed under this contract upon termination.

16. Integration Clause. The foregoing represents the entire agreement between the
parties and any prior understanding or representations of any kind preceding the
date of this agreement shall not be binding upon the other party except to the
extent incorporated in this agreement.

17.Modifications. No modification of this agreement shall be binding upon the parties
unless reduced to writing.

POLK COUNTY CENTRAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 13J

Date: _______________________ Date: __________________________

By: _________________________ By: _________________________________
Polk County Representative Central School District Representative

Page | 4

08/07/23



Appendix A

School District Services
Central School District agrees to:

1. Allow for Polk County staff to primarily focus on providing mental
health services to students

a. Invite staff to school meetings as appropriate (i.e:
MTSS/SIT/PBIS/IEP)

2. Provide mental health staff with appropriate confidential and consistent
office space for individual and group work, and a reasonable level of
office/clerical/technical support.

3. District agrees to participate in the identification and screening of
students who may benefit from School Based Mental Health services
and will provide referrals as needed. District will provide access to
students and their pertinent records when identified.

4. District will have the opportunity to participate in the hiring process.
5. District will give Polk County input on the staff’s job performance.
6. Reimburse Polk County in the amount of $544,762 for the 2023-24

academic year for mental health services and support as indicated.
To be paid in equal 1/12 allotments.

a. Cost breakdown: Wages, insurance, and benefits $506,204;
Mileage, training, administration and supplies $38,558

b. Up to an additional $10,000 will be made available for
District-specific training agreed upon by the CSD Representative
and SBMH Supervisor (This is not included in the total contract
amount shown above).

Polk County Services
Polk County agrees to:

1. Provide the following FTE:
a. 2 Therapist level staff

● Central High School
● Talmadge Middle School

b. 4 Associate level staff
● Independence Elementary
● Monmouth Elementary
● Ash Creek Elementary
● Floating Resource Connector

2. Contract days for staff are to be from August 24, 2023- July 19, 2024
with the exception of one Associate level staff who will work 12 months
and support summer school needs.

3. Provide clinical supervision to all team members on an ongoing and
regular basis

4. Address corrective staffing issues as needed with the support of
building administration

5. Provide mental health skills training to individuals, groups and families
as needed and as assigned by school and county personnel, and upon
self-referral from clients and families within the district's assigned

Page | 5



schools. Group skills training may include, but is not limited to,
assistance in the development of skills in anger management,
life/academic skills, healthy relationships, peer relationships,
anti-bullying, and other identified topic areas.

6. Attend Service Integration Meetings and assist district in accessing
county and community resources

7. Maintain appropriate records of services provided within a secure
Electronic Health Record system.

8. Provide crisis intervention and screenings on an as-needed basis
during normal working hours. Crisis intervention after hours will be
routed through Polk County's assigned crisis intervention team. Staff
will conduct crisis intervention through Crisis Response Team (formally
known as Flight Team) leadership and support, Level I suicide
screenings, Level I and Level 2 threat assessments, and through grief
and loss support to students and families.

9. In addition to providing individual and group services as noted in 2c,
staff will provide prevention and early intervention services to assigned
schools through classroom presentations, school assemblies, and
through special events when requested by school administration.

10.Fully participate in curriculums, programs and trainings provided by
The District that are specific to their role within The District.

Special Conditions:
1. Polk County agrees to support employees to promote positive school

environments and collegial relationships by:
a. Attending school staffing’s as requested;
b. Attending and consulting at Student Services Team (SST) and

Individualized Education Program (IEP) child meetings when
appropriate

c. Participating in MTSS (Multi-Tiered Systems of Support) meetings,
PBIS (Positive Behavior Intervention and Supports), and JEDI (Justice,
Equity, Diversity and Inclusion) efforts as requested

d. Attending parent meetings as requested;
e. Seek meetings as needed with appropriate school personnel.

2. Polk County employees shall assist school personnel in dealing with students
in crisis. Employees shall respond to requests by school staff to provide
therapeutic crisis intervention, without the use of physical restraint
measures. Employees may also participate in Level l and Level 2 Student
Threat Assessments.

3. District understands that Polk County School Based Mental Health Staff have
duties and expectations that necessitate time out of the school building;
these duties and expectations will average approximately eight (8) hours per
month, this is in addition to scheduled training(s) and personal/family
emergencies or use of vacation/sick leave. Examples of duties include but are
not limited to: clinical supervision, twice monthly School Based Mental Health

Page | 6



staff meetings, assigned Service Integration Team, and occasional training
and staff development opportunities. Staff have accrued sick and vacation
time that may also lead to additional time out of the building. In these
instances, a substitute will not be provided by the county unless time missed
exceeds ten working days. The county will work to place a substitute in the
district if the absence exceeds 10 working days.

4. District understands that a designated “SBMH Lead” staff member may use
up to 15% of their work time towards tasks unrelated to their typical school
duties (consultation with other SBMH staff, attending Level 2 threat
assessments, etc).

Page | 7



 CONTRACT REVIEW SHEET 

 Staff Contact:  Rosana Warren  Phone Number (Ext):  2428 

 Department:  Health Services: Public Health  Consent Calendar Date:  September 20, 2023 

 Contractor Name:  Salem Health West Valley 

 Address:  525 SE Washington Street 

 City, State, Zip:  Dallas, OR 97338 

 Effective Dates - From:  September 29, 2023  Through:  June 30, 2024 

 Contract Amount:  $60,000.00 

 Background: 

 Salem Health West Valley (SHWV) has agreed to provide health services to Polk County residents at 
 the Central Health and Wellness Center, which is also a State certified School Based Health Center 
 (SBHC). Polk County through its contract with the State of Oregon is required to provide School 
 Based Health Center services as outlined in Program Element 44. 

 Discussion: 

 This contract with SHWV is a continuation of services SHWV has been providing throughout the 
 years with no changes. 

 Fiscal Impact: 

 The Public Health budget has sufficient expenditure authority to accommodate this contract. The 
 2023-2024 Public Health budget was prepared in anticipation of this agreement. 

 Recommendation: 

 It is recommended that Polk County sign this agreement with Salem Health West Valley. 

 Copies of signed contract should be sent to the following: 
 Name:  Rosana Warren  E-mail:  hs.contracts@co.polk.or.us 

 Name:  E-mail: 

 Name:  E-mail: 



Polk County Contract No. 23-188























Vice President, Salem Health Medical Group

9/14/2023






















	Staff Contact: Dana Goodale
	Department: FCO
	Title: SBMH Supervisor
	Consent Calendar Date: 
	Contractor Name: Central School District
	Contractor Address: 750 South 5th St.
	City, State, Zip: Independence, OR 97351
	From: July 1, 2023
	Thru: June 30, 2024
	Contract Amount: 544,762
	Sole Source: Yes
	Competitive Quote: Off
	Formal Bid: Off
	Request for Proposals: Off
	Personal Services: Off
	Special/Exempt: Off
	Special Exempt: 
	Discussion: The purpose of this Contract is to provide School Based Mental Health services to students and families of Central School District through the ongoing employment of 6 FTE Mental Health Staff, 5 stationed full time in schools and 1 floating Resource Connector.
	Fiscal Impact: Without this contract we would not be able to provide School Based Mental Health services to students and families of Central School District.
	Recommendation: 
	E-mail: goodale.dana@co.polk.or.us
	Email 3: 
	Name 1: Dana Goodale
	Name 2: Jennifer Segovia
	E-mail 2: segovia.jennifer@co.polk.or.us
	Name 3: 


